
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Outbreak Control Engagement Board 

 
Date: Friday, 23 July 2021 
 
Time:  11.00 am 
 
Place: To be held remotely via Zoom - meeting participants will be given access 

details. The public part of the meeting will be livestreamed on the Council's 
YouTube Channel - https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil 

 
 
Board Members are requested to attend the above meeting:  
 
 
 
Governance Officer: Emma Powley     Direct Dial: 0115 8764891 

 
 

   
1  Apologies for absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interests for agenda item 3- 7  
 

 

3  Public Minutes  
To confirm the Minutes of the public section of the meeting held on 12 
May 2021 and 25 June 2021 
 

3 - 18 

4  Nottingham's Local Outbreak Management Plan Update  
 

 

5  Understanding Long COVID  
 

 

6  Universities preparation for the new academic year  
 

 

7  Local COVID-19 Vaccination Plan Update  
 

 

8  Board Member Updates  
a) Nottinghamshire Police  
b) Environmental Health  
c) Education  
d) NHS  

 

 

9  Exclusion of the public to move into the confidential section of the 
meeting  
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil


10  Declarations of Interest for agenda items 11-15  
 

 

11  Private Minutes  
To approve the Minutes of the confidential section of the meeting held 
on the 12 May 2021 and 25 June 2021 
 

19 - 24 

12  Situational round up  
 

 

13  Universities preparation for the new academic year  
 

 

14  Education Update  
 

 

15  Local COVID-19 Vaccination Plan Update  
 

 

 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 



 

1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Outbreak Control Engagement Board 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Zoom with public parts of the meeting 
livestreamed on the Council's YouTube Channel - 
https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil on 12 May 2021 from 11.30 am - 
12.45 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
David Johns 
Councillor Rebecca Langton 
Councillor Sally Longford (Chair) 
Amanda Sullivan 
Hugh White 
 

Mel Barrett 
Ruby Bhattal 
Steven Cooper 
Andrew Errington 
Clive Foster 
Councillor Neghat Khan 
Vanessa MacGregor 
Dr Hugh Porter 
Sara Storey 
 

Mathew Healy (substitute for Steven Cooper) 
Steve Thorne (substitute for Ruby Bhattal) 
  
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Jason Carter 
Paul Dales 
 
Clare Routledge 
Nigel Wright 
Jane Garrard 

- University of Nottingham 
- Chief Environmental Health Officer, Nottingham City 

Council 
- Public Health, Nottingham City Council 
- Nottingham Trent University 
- Senior Governance Officer, Nottingham City Council 

 
230  Apologies for absence 

 
Ruby Bhattal – Steve Thorne attended as a substitute 
Steven Cooper – Mat Healy attended as a substitute  
Councillor Neghat Khan 
Sara Storey 
Councillor Adele Williams 
 
231  Declarations of Interests for agenda items 3 - 7 

 
None 
 
232  Public Minutes 

 
The Board approved the minutes of the public section of the meeting held on 16 April 
2021. 
 
233  Nottingham's Outbreak Management Plan update 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

2 

 
David Johns, Interim Director of Public Health Nottingham City Council, gave an 
update on Nottingham’s Outbreak Control Plan, highlighting the following information: 
 
a) There were 102 cases in the last seven days, which is a rate of 32.1 per 100,000 

population. 
 

b) The current rate is a slight increase compared to the previous seven days, which 
had a rate of 28.2 per 100,000 population, and is slightly higher than the England 
average of 21.5 per 100,000 population. 

 
c) The rate amongst those aged over 60 years is really positive.  There were four 

cases in the previous seven days which is a rate of 7.7 per 100,000 population. 
 

d) It is anticipated that there will be a slight rise in cases over the next few days, but 
this is a rise compared to a previously low rate.  Since April there have been 
consistently low rates in the City, but current fluctuations will be monitored 
closely. 

 
e) There is a similar distribution of cases across age groups for all cases and in 

those cases during April and May 2021, except for a lower proportion of cases 
amongst over 60s during April and May 2021. 

 
f) There has recently been information in local media about the identification of a 

variant of concern in Nottingham.  A variant first identified in India was classified 
as a variant of concern last week and some cases have been identified in 
Nottingham.  The variant appears to be transmitted more easily but does not 
result on greater severity of illness or appear to circumvent vaccine immunity.  

 
g) Plans for responding to variants of concern were discussed at the last Board 

meeting and the City was in a good position to stand up testing arrangements 
quickly.  The City was notified of cases at the end of last week and, following a 
significant effort by partners, testing commenced on 10 May. 

 
h) Targeted testing is taking place in targeted parts of the City to quickly identify 

cases and minimise onwards transmission.  So far over 600 people have been 
tested, which is a great response. 

 
i) Those individuals who have not been invited to be tested are still encouraged to 

support efforts to minimise transmission by following the ‘Hands, Face, Space’ 
guidance, participate in asymptomatic testing and get vaccinated when invited to 
do so. 

 
j) Regular meetings are held with Public Health England about sequenced cases.  

It is anticipated that results will be come through today or tomorrow giving an 
early indication on the number of positive cases, and plans will be adjusted 
accordingly. 

 
k) Further easing of restrictions is due to take place in 17 May, in line with Step 3 of 

the Government’s Roadmap.  Citizens are encouraged to still be cautious by, for 
example, participating in asymptomatic testing. 

Page 4



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

3 

 
The Board commented that it was good that plans were in place to enable targeted 
testing to be put in place quickly in response to identification of cases of a variant of 
concern in the City. 
 
234  Universities' student return arrangements 

 
Nigel Wright, Nottingham Trent University, and Jason Carter, University of 
Nottingham, gave an update on arrangements for the return of students to university.  
They highlighted the following information: 
 
a) From 17 May 2021 universities can resume some in-person teaching.  However, 

this will be limited because, by this stage of the academic year, most teaching 
has been completed and students are prepared for assessment.  This year 
arrangements have been put in place for assessments to take place online. 
 

b) Quite a few students have already returned to the City so it is not anticipated that 
there will be a further significant number returning this weekend.  Testing has 
been, and continues to be offered to all students returning to university and 
generally there is a good compliance rate.  Testing will continue throughout the 
term.   

 
c) There is regular communication with students about complying with Government 

guidelines, getting tested regularly and engaging with the vaccination programme 
when eligible.  Communication is also taking place about engaging with local 
businesses now that retail and hospitality sectors are opening up. 

 
d) In line with Step 3 of the Government’s Roadmap, plans are in place to reopen 

more facilities on campus in accordance with Regulations and students will be 
encouraged to make use of these facilities. 

 
e) The University of Nottingham’s student halls pilot started last week.  Progress will 

be reviewed next week to decide if it will continue for the rest of the term.  If it is 
successful then it is hoped to continue it next academic year as it potentially has 
benefits for the student experience and in controlling outbreaks.  Although it has 
different accommodation arrangements, Nottingham Trent University is watching 
the pilot to identify any lessons that it can learn.  The Department for Education is 
also interested in the findings as they could be applied to other universities 
across the country. 

 
In response to questions from the Nottinghamshire Police representative, it was 
confirmed that the two universities will continue to communicate with their students 
about compliance with Regulations, for example in relation to hosting and attending 
large gatherings and parties.  The universities will not be holding large end of year 
events but are providing guidance about ad hoc events that may be arranged by 
others.  In many cases it would be preferable for students to celebrate at hospitality 
premises because they should have Covid-19 safe arrangements in place. 
 
235  Local Covid-19 Vaccination Plan update 

 

Page 5



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

4 

An update on the local Covid-19 Vaccination Plan was provided under agenda item 7 
(Board Member update from the NHS). 
 
236  Board Member updates 

 
Mat Healy, Nottinghamshire Police, gave an update on the work of the Police in the 
City since the last Board meeting.  He highlighted the following information: 
 
a) 107 fixed penalty notices have been issued across the Force since the last 

meeting, 75 of which were issued in the City.  The majority of these related to 
people attending large gatherings.   
 

b) Restrictions on hospitality and the night-time economy have been relaxed in 
accordance with the Government’s Roadmap.  Outdoor hospitality has opened 
up and a number of premises that would not normally operate outdoor space now 
have pavement licences.  There is currently a 3000 person capacity for outdoor 
hospitality in the City. 

 
c) Since the relaxation of restrictions there have generally been good levels of 

compliance with no significant issues.  The Police are working with Community 
Protection colleagues on any licensing infringements that do occur. 

 
d) The next stage in easing of restrictions will take place on 17 May, including 

reopening of indoor hospitality.  This will mean an increase to the outdoor 
capacity of 3,500 and an indoor capacity of 6,000 people.  Some premises will 
also be able to operate later than the current time.  Licensing Teams have been 
in touch with venues in preparation for the changes. 

 
e) In response to the easing of restrictions, Nottinghamshire Police is reinstating full 

night-time resourcing on Friday and Saturday evenings.  In the City Centre there 
will also be an ‘early intervention’ shift to ‘meet and greet’ people and gauge 
numbers out that evening.  Additional neighbourhood officers will also be in place 
for the first week to support Duty Teams.    

 
f) Planning is taking place with partners for the further easing of restrictions on 21 

June 2021. 
 

In response to questions, it was clarified that if members of the public observe what 
appear to be breaches in Regulations they can report this via the 101 telephone 
number or online.  If Parks staff observe signs of gatherings in parks and open 
spaces then they are asked to contact the Community Protection Team as soon as 
possible because it is easier to deal with potential issues at an early stage.  
 
Paul Dales, Chief Environmental Health Officer Nottingham City Council, gave an 
update on the work of the Environmental Health Team since the last Board meeting.  
He highlighted the following information: 
 
g) Preparations have been taking place with partners to work with the business 

community on the next stage in the easing of restrictions on 17 May.  This has 
included attending meetings of PubWatch and with members of the Business 
Improvement District.   

Page 6



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

5 

 
h) Engagement of businesses started with those already open to discuss the 

changes in restrictions, followed by engaging with those not currently open.  
Intelligence, such as cross-referencing data on which businesses have 
downloaded QR codes is being used to inform the programme of engagement. 
 

i) As it has been throughout the pandemic, the Team’s focus is on informing and 
protecting through engagement and encouragement, but enforcement is used 
when necessary. 

 
j) Generally, businesses are working hard to prepare for the next stage of 

reopening. 
 

k) The Team is liaising with event organisers, including in relation to Temporary 
Event Notices and development of Event Management Plans to make sure that 
they are aware of the Covid measures required. 

 
l) The Team is also working with sports grounds, such as Notts County Football 

Club, on the return of spectators to sporting events.  The Safety Advisory Group 
is reviewing plans, which need to meet specific requirements for sports grounds 
in addition to the standard Covid requirements.  Generally, such organisations 
are being very co-operative. 

 
During subsequent discussion the following points were made: 
 
m) Businesses have learnt a lot over the last year and there is now better availability 

of equipment such as personal protective equipment.  There are also greater 
links with Business Support Officers in terms of business support and access to 
business grants.  Therefore, lots of businesses are relatively well-prepared but 
some are still requiring more of a ‘nudge’ approach. 
 

n) Business premises should display a QR code and have other mechanisms to 
record contact details if a customer cannot scan the QR code. 

 
o) If members of the public observe what they believe to breaches of Covid 

Regulations then they can report this on the Council’s website and it will be 
looked into. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 12:10 and reconvened at 12:15pm. 
 
Amanda Sullivan, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group, 
gave an update from an NHS perspective, highlighting the following information: 
 
p) The position is generally positive.  The number of hospital beds occupied by 

patients with Covid-19 continues to decline, although there are still some patients 
who are seriously ill with the virus.  There were 28 admissions relating to Covid-
19 in the seven days to 2 May, which compares to 21 in the previous seven days.  
On 4 May 51 beds were occupied by Covid positive patients compared to 66 on 
27 April.  Of those 51 beds, 18% were mechanically ventilated.  In the week 
between 29 April and 5 May, there was 1 death in hospital compared to 3 the 
previous week. 

Page 7



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

6 

 
q) Increasing numbers of people are accessing the Emergency Department.  It is 

important that people use the most appropriate service to access care and 
should call NHS 111 first.  This service now has more capabilities, developed 
during the pandemic, for clinical assessment and can also book appointments for 
people. 

 
r) The roll out of the vaccination programme locally continues to be successful.  

People aged over 40 years are being encouraged to book a vaccination 
appointment, and outreach and engagement work with specific communities is 
taking place to support this. 

 
s) Current vaccination rates in the City are: 

 
a. 80+ = 90% (79.8% second dose) 
b. 75-79 = 98.3% (87.8% second dose) 
c. 70-74 = 95.3% (83.6% second dose) 
d. 65-69 = 88.8% (33.4% second dose) 
e. 60-64 = 92.2% (15.8% second dose) 
f. 55-59 = 90.3% (15.3% second dose) 
g. 50-54 = 84.2% (13.6% second dose) 
h. 45-49 = 69.4% (12.3% second dose) 
i. Under 45s = 20% (6.3% second dose) 

 
t) The vaccination booking process has been streamlined and appointments at both 

national and local centres can be booked in the same way. 
 

u) The focus of the vaccination programme is now on delivering second doses of 
the vaccine.  The rates for second doses amongst older age groups is really 
good, but there is still more to do.  Everyone is strongly encouraged to get their 
second dose as this offers the best level of protection. 

 
During subsequent discussion the following points were raised: 
 
v) There are clear links between the people hospitalised for reasons related to 

Covid-19 and those who have not been vaccinated.  People who have been 
vaccinated have a significantly reduced risk of needing to go to hospital.  It is 
important that the effectiveness of the vaccination is well communicated. 
 

w) The Vaccination Bus continues to operate.  It is moving into different locations 
and will also revisit some areas that it has already been to.  The location of the 
bus is driven by data. 

 
237  Exclusion of the public to move into the confidential section of the 

meeting 
 

The Board agreed to exclude the public to move into the confidential section of the 
meeting. 
 
238  Declarations of Interests for agenda items 10 - 14 

 

Page 8



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 12.05.21 

7 

See Confidential Minutes 
 
239  Confidential Minutes 

 
See Confidential Minutes 
 
240  Situational round up 

 
See Confidential Minutes 
 
241  Universities' student return arrangements 

 
See Confidential Minutes 
 
242  Lessons learnt from local surge testing practice exercise 

 
See Confidential Minutes 
 
243  Local Covid-19 Vaccination Plan update 

 
See Confidential Minutes 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Outbreak Control Engagement Board 
 
Minutes of the meeting held  remotely via Zoom and livestreamed on the 
Council's YouTube Channel - https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil 
on 25 June 2021 from 2.00 pm - 3.55 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Ruby Bhattal 
Steven Cooper 
David Johns 
Councillor Neghat Khan 
Councillor Sally Longford (Chair) 
Amanda Sullivan 
Councillor Adele Williams 
 

Mel Barrett 
Andrew Errington 
Councillor Rebecca Langton 
Dr Hugh Porter 
Sara Storey 
 

  
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Janine Walker  Head of SEND and Vulnerable Pupils, 

Children and Families 
Maria Principe  Covid 19 Vaccination Programme Director 
Emma Powley Interim Governance Officer 
 
244  Apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Rebecca Langton 
Sarah Storey 
Andrew Errington 
 
The Chair noted that she would have to leave the meeting at 2.30pm due to a 
medical appointment. 
 
244  Apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Rebecca Langton 
Sarah Storey 
Andrew Errington 
 
The Chair noted that she would have to leave the meeting at 2.30pm due to a 
medical appointment. 
 
245  Declarations of Interests for agenda items 3 - 7 

 
None 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 11



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

2 

246  Public Minutes 
 

The public minutes of the meeting held on the 12 May 2021 were deferred to the 
meeting on the 23 July 2021 
 
247  Nottingham's Local Outbreak Management Plan update 

 
David Johns, Director of Public Health Nottingham City Council, gave an update on 
Nottingham’s Outbreak Control Plan, highlighting the following information: 
 

a) There were 454 new cases over the last 7 days; an increase of 161 cases. 
This equated to a rate of 136.4 per 100,000 population, the previous week 
being 88.3 per 100,000. 
 

b) There remained a low number of cases in the over 60’s, with the highest case 
rates being amongst 16-22 and 12-17 year olds. 
 

c) For those showing no signs of having Covid, asymptomatic testing is available 
from a number of outlets, including pharmacies and community testing sites. 
Home test kit collection points will be available in 12 City libraries and 
Nottingham City Council Home Meals will be distributing home testing kits. 
 

d) For those showing signs of Covid, people should tale the PCR test; current 
testing rates in Nottingham would need to increase to avoid further increased 
rates.  
 

e) The national roadmap had been paused by the Government’s decision to 
extend this to the 19th July 2021, but there have been small amendments to 
the rules. 
 

f) With the Euro’s 2020 being underway, people needed to remain cautious and 
adhere to the rules around gathering. 
 

g) From the 25-28 June 2021, a ‘Vax-the-Nation’ event is being held with 9 sites 
across the City offering a walk-in service for anyone who has not had their 
vaccination.  

 
 
248  Board Member updates 

 
Steve Cooper, Nottinghamshire Police, gave an update on the work of the Police in 
the City since the last Board meeting. He highlighted the following information: 

 
a) Police had planned for the easing of lockdown for the 21 June 2021, but this 

has been extended and so further work is being undertaken to ensure they are 
ready for the revised date of the 19 July 2021. 
 

b) Overall, pubs and other venues are being well managed and governed, 
especially during the Euro’s with very few issues reported. 
 

Page 12



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

3 

c) Since 1 April 2021, 239 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN’s) have been issued 
across the city. More tickets have been issued at fewer incidents such as 
where there had been large gatherings/parties; these were issued primarily for 
blatant breeches of the rules and associated anti-social behaviour and public 
health issues. Only one £10,000 fine had been issued recently. 
 

d) With the Home Nation matches being played within the next few days an 
enhanced policing operation is in place. There had been no reported disorder 
or trouble when previous matches had taken place. 
 

The Chair, as a Ward Councillor, thanked the police for their recent assistance in 
acting to get a dispersal order for a number of parties taking place in her ward area 
which would act as a deterrent. 
 
Steve Cooper confirmed that not only did issuing dispersal orders act as a deterrent, 
it also gave Police other enforcement powers should they be necessary. 
 
Paul Dales, Chief Environmental Health Officer Nottingham City Council, gave an 
update on the work of the Environmental Health Team since the last Board meeting. 
He highlighted the following information: 
 

a) The Environmental Health Team has carried out 119 Covid-secure visits – 
mainly in the hospitality and retail sector; 25 premises were found to have 
minor non-compliance issues which were promptly resolved. 
 

b) 39 complaints have been received, the majority of which refer to either a lack 
of Personal Protective Equipment for staff, a lack of enforcement of the 
wearing of face coverings or a lack of social distancing. Overall, businesses 
were very cooperative and were working hard to ensure they were Covid-
secure.  A number of customers had not been assisting these business by 
complying with the rules.  
 

c) Environmental Health continue to work on outbreak control investigations and 
on-sight interventions including visits to schools, sports clubs and training 
establishments to offer advice on a variety of issues including servicing air 
conditioning units, face coverings and the importance of having good 
ventilation.  
 

d) The work of businesses, volunteer organisations and workplaces has been 
very positive in reducing overall risk and there has been general cooperation 
across the City. 
 

Amanda Sullivan, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group, 
gave an update from an NHS perspective, highlighting the following information: 
 

a) There have been 17 admissions relating to Covid in the past week, an 
increase of 8 on the previous week. Of those admissions 2 patients were 
being mechanically ventilated. No deaths (from Covid) have been reported. 
 

b) The NHS strongly encourages people to get a Covid vaccination and 
explained that evidence was that after the 2nd vaccination people would be far 

Page 13



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

4 

less likely to be hospitalised and that having a double vaccination would offer 
greater protection against the Delta variant.  
 

c) Current vaccination rates in the city are reported as follows  

 
a) 16-24 = 22.6% (10.0% second dose) 
b) 25-29 = 37.3% (13.8% second dose) 
c) 30-34 = 65.2% (23% second dose) 
d) 35-39 = 71% (71% second dose) 
e) 40-44 = 80.5% (37.4% second dose) 
f) 45-49 = 81.4% (47.7% second dose) 
g) 50-54 = 87.1% (79.2% second dose) 
h) 55-59 = 92.9% (86.2% second dose) 
i) 60-64 = 94.5% (88.6% second dose) 
j) 65-69 = 89.5 % (86.4% second dose) 
k) 70-74 = 95.7% (93.1% second dose) 
l) 75-79 = 98.2% (95.5% second dose) 
m) 80 + = 89.1% (86% second dose) 

 
d) Additional information about the Big Vax-the-Nation event was given and 

noted that both the Pfizer and AstraZeneca vaccines will be offered across all 
the sites in the City. 

 
Janine Walker presented a Nottingham Schools update on the work of schools 
across the City. She highlighted the following information: 
 

a) Following the return to schools after the Whitsun break there had been an 
increase in the number of pupils having to self-isolate as a result of having 
been identified as a close contact to a positive cases.  
 

b) As of 23 June 2021, 927 pupils were self-isolating (across 22 City schools) 
compared to 145 pupils (across 5 City schools) in the week before half term. 
 

c) A number of schools have worked directly with Public Health England and the 
Local Authority Health Team on whole school testing programmes in order to 
prevent the spread of infections and identify any patterns of transmission. 
 

d) Attendance data given to the Department for Education (DfE) showed an 
average attendance rate of 87% overall. There have been a number of issues 
with regards to pupils being abroad and unable to return to the UK. This will 
continue to be monitored.   
 

e) The transition from year 6 to 7 would ordinarily involve a number of group 
activities. However, Department for Education (DfE) guidance suggests that 
there should not be mixing of groups to decrease the risk of infections.  
 

f) Sports Day and other End of Year events will be allowed, but guidance has 
been issued (based on DfE guidance) by the School and the Health and 
Safety Manager to ensure that this could be done safely. 
 

Page 14



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

5 

At this point of the meeting (2.32pm) Councillor Sally Langford left the meeting and 
the position of Chair was assumed by Councillor Adele Williams 
 
249  Delivering events safely during Covid-19 

 
Patrick Loy, Head of Nottingham Events, gave an update on events in the City area 
and highlighted the following information: 
 

a) Planning for large events is currently very difficult, despite a number of smaller 
events having been successfully held across the City.  
 

b) The Government-run Events Research Programme (ERP) has run a number 
of event pilot schemes, the data from the pilot schemes has yet to be released 
and very little information/guidance has been made available.  
 

c) Prior to any event being held, several measures are requested of event 
organisers, which includes a Covid risk assessment, designing event layouts 
to reduce risk and clear policies for staff and audience members showing 
signs of Covid.  
 

d) A number of outdoor events had been held since the easing of the lockdown 
and discussions are still on going with regards to future events and planning is 
currently underway. 

 
Peter Ireson, Venue Director, Nottingham Theatre Royal and Royal Concert Hall 
delivered a presentation to the Board and highlighted a number of steps that have 
been taken at the theatre to ensure that it is Covid compliant. He reported that there 
has been a significant shift in how the theatre will run in order to keep members of 
the public safe. 
 
In response to a question asked by the Chair, it was noted that vaccinations weekend 
is being promoted by the events team and Peter Ireson confirmed that he engages in 
promoting the vaccination. 
 
250  Overview of Nottingham City's Local Covid-19 Vaccination Plan 

 
Maria Principe, Covid 19 Vaccination Programme Director and Director of Population 
Health Management, gave an update on the Covid Vaccination Plan, highlighting the 
following information: 
 

a) There is Local Resilience Forum approach with partnership working with front 
line services and volunteers. 
 

b) The vaccination programme started in November 2020. 
 

c) Local vaccination sites were established with a number of community 
pharmacies collaborating.  
 

d) January 2021 saw the first AstraZeneca vaccines being given. Second doses 
were beginning to be administered in April 2020 and ‘Victor the Vaccination’ 
bus was launched.  

Page 15



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

6 

 
e) 6 local vaccination centres continue to deliver both the AstraZeneca and Pfizer 

vaccine.  At present 98% of population are within a 5 mile radius of a 
vaccination centre. 
 

f) Intelligence is used to try and target efforts to get people vaccinated where 
there has been a low uptake such as the vaccination bus which focused on 
reaching homeless people, workplaces and other more difficult to reach 
residents. 
 

g) Increased communication by working with local radio stations, local community 
groups and community representatives and running workshops and providing 
information in various languages. 
 

h) Inequalities between deprivation and ethnicity have been identified and 
attempts are being made to plug those gaps through targeted engagement.  
 

The Chair suggested that work could be done to make sure every contact had with 
GP services reminds people get the vaccination. With regards to inequality as many 
new approaches as possible are needed to keep plugging away and assurance given 
that this remain at the forefront of work carried out.  
 
Ruby Bhattal, Head of Communications and Marketing, highlighted the following 
information:  
 

a) There have been specific communications directed at various groups amongst 
the City to cover all age groups. A broadcast scheme has been launched 
encouraging people to take up the vaccination. Work is being done with the 
Business Improvement District (BID) to encourage people back to retail.  
 

b) There has been extensive advertising about vaccinations which has been 
included in residents’ magazines. It was noted that the subscription to the 
Leader’s bulletin has increased by 171.24% since March 2020.  
 

c) Efforts are being made to ensure that every communication platform is being 
tapped into, including working with schools, businesses, leisure sector and 
Universities.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 3.26pm for a comfort break.  
 
251  Exclusion of the public to move into the confidential section of the 

meeting 
 

Following the adjournment, the meeting resumed at 3.32pm.  
 
The Board agreed to exclude the public and move into the confidential section of the 
meeting. 
 
252  Declarations of Interests for agenda items 10 - 13 

 
See confidential minutes. 

Page 16



Outbreak Control Engagement Board - 25.06.21 

7 

 
253  Confidential Minutes 

 
See confidential minutes 
 
254  Situational round up 

 
See confidential minutes 
 
255  Education update 

 
See confidential minutes 
 
256  Overview of Nottingham City's local Covid-19 Vaccination Plan 

 
See confidential minutes 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 25/06/2021 Outbreak Control Engagement Board
	Minutes


	11 Private Minutes
	Confidential Minutes:Items 9 - 13 , 25/06/2021 Outbreak Control Engagement Board


